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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Ocean Group Development Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETE®E

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the Annual Report of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Year"”) to
our shareholders.

RESULTS

The Revenue for the Group decreased to approximately HK$621.7
million for the Year as compared to approximately HK$826.5
million in 2020. The Group’s aquatic products business generated
a total revenue of approximately HK$618.9 million, the fishing
operation also contributed to approximately HK$2.8 million to
the Group’s total revenue. The Group has continued to develop
its business relationships with its business partners and potential
partners in the PRC in order to increase and explore new sources of
income. The Group continued to concentrate on aquatic products
during the Year.

The Group recorded a decrease in gross profit to approximately
HK$41.6 million in the Year as compared to approximately
HK$87.1 million in 2020. The Group will continue to control the
material costs and explore new business opportunities, so as to
improve the gross profit of the Group. The gross profit margin,
excluding interest income received from the money lending
business, decreased from 10.5% to 6.68% during the Year. Gross
profit margin of aquatic products from fishing operation were
generally higher than from supply chain operation.

Net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$377.8 million as compared to a
profit of approximately HK$28.0 million in 2020. During the year,
the administrative expenses increased to approximately HK$67.5
million from HK$45.4 million in 2020 which is mainly due to
written off of other receivables, however this is partially offset by
the Group’s tightening of cost control and the restriction imposed
on travelling because of COVID-19, travelling and transportation
expenses reduced significantly. Apart from the written off of other
receivables, the major components in administrative expenses
being salaries and welfare for both staff and directors; rent and
rates, legal and professional fee and depreciation.
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During the year, the Group incurred heavy impairment losses
on goodwill and trade receivables of HK$116.97million and
HK$178.03 million respectively; these impairment losses amounted
to approximately 77.7% of the loss for the year. Due to the of
the continuity of the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group had
experienced difficulties in the renewal of fishing licenses from
overseas government because fishing vessels inspection by PRC
officials, which is one of the pre-requisite for renewal, was
unable to carry out due to travel restrictions being imposed. As
management was unable to estimate the time required to re-
commence the existing overseas fishing operation in the current
overseas country, the management began to seek for alternative
overseas fishing grounds, thus, the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of the Company’s subsidiaries were fully impaired.
Again, because of COVID-19, the Group had experienced delays
in settlement from its customers, the management had made
various request to urge for the settlement of the amounts due,
but because of the slow settlement from the customer, the
management has made impairment losses on the outstanding
balance as the yearend date based on the settlement pattern from
the customer.

Included in the total assets, there were advance payments to
suppliers amounting to HK$517.3 million (31 March 2020:
HK$626.6 million); as a trading practice, the suppliers usually
require the Group to place a deposit to secure the supply of aqua-
products. The amount of deposit were made in accordance with
the supply contracts with the supplier, however, with reduction
in trading volume, some of these deposits were applied to the
settlement of purchases to the suppliers. The Group has performed
an expected loss assessment to write down the advance payment
to suppliers to its fair value.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Supply chain management and related services

The supply chain management remains the main focus of the
Group. The Group is providing intermediate service between
suppliers and customers and it takes advantage of the business
networks and resources in order to assist small and medium -
sized enterprises in various industries to minimise the overall
operation cost. Owing to the solid financial background of the
Group and the great demand for supply chain service in mainland
China, the Group has established many strategic partnerships with
other supply chain companies, so as to undertake the operation
of purchase and sales based on the services on import and export
trade, logistic, customs clearance and storage.

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Chairman'’s Statement (Continued)

ETFE®HE (HFE)

During the Year, the Group continued its supply chain management
services of aquatic products. The Group also expanded its
operation to vertically integrate with fishing subsidiaries to secure
the supply of aquatic products.

PROSPECT

With the lead of the management team, the Company is actively
exploring business opportunities in other sectors to diversify risks
and broaden the sources of income of the Company. The Company
has adequate resources to continue with its business operations,
and will continue to focus on its corporate objective to develop
current businesses in order to strengthen its competitiveness,
integrate its capital resources and contribute a maximum wealth to
our equity holders.

The Company’s supply chain management business has been
adversely affected by the continuity of the outbreak of COVID-19
during the Year, however, the Company will pay close attention
to its performance and future development. At the same time,
the management will continuously monitor and review the overall
operation and financial performance of the Group’s businesses
so as to cope with the ever-changing business environment. The
management will continue to proactively seek other promising
investment and business opportunities to broaden the source of
income of the Group and enhance value to the shareholders of
the Company through investment and/or acquisitive business or
projects that have promising outlooks and prospects, and with
the Group’s management team having extensive experience in
the marine fishing business, the Group will also explore further
opportunities in the marine fishing business.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to all members of the Board and staff for
their dedication and contribution to the Group and to those who
have supported us. We will continue to make our best efforts in
developing our businesses to produce good economic results and
better return for our shareholders.

Liu Rongsheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
Supply chain management and related services

The supply chain management service remains the main focus of
the Group. The Group is providing intermediate service between
suppliers and customers and it takes advantage of the business
networks and resources in order to assist small and medium -
sized enterprises in various industries to minimise the overall
operation cost. Owing to the solid financial background of the
Group and the great demand for supply chain service in mainland
China, the Group has established many strategic partnerships with
other supply chain companies, so as to undertake the operation
of purchase and sales based on the services on import and export
trade, logistic, customs clearance and storage.

During the year, the Group continued its supply chain management
services of aquatic products. The Group also expanded its
operation to vertically integrate with fishing subsidiaries to secure
the supply of aquatic products.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Revenue for the Group decreased to approximately HK$621.7
million for the Year as compared to approximately HK$826.5
million in 2020. The Group's aquatic products business generated
a total revenue of approximately HK$618.9 million, the fishing
operation also contributed to approximately HK$2.8 million to
the Group’s total revenue. The Group has continued to develop
its business relationships with its business partners and potential
partners in the PRC in order to increase and explore new sources of
income. The Group continued to concentrate on aquatic products
during the Year.

The Group recorded a decrease in gross profit to approximately
HK$41.6 million in the Year as compared to approximately
HK$87.1 million in 2020. The Group will continue to control the
material costs and explore new business opportunities, so as to
improve the gross profit of the Group. The gross profit margin,
excluding interest income received from the money lending
business, decreased from 10.5% to 6.68% during the Year. Gross
profit margin of aquatic products from fishing operation were
generally higher than from supply chain operation.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENmER DN (&)

Net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$377.8 million as compared to a
profit of approximately HK$28.0 million in 2020. During the year,
the administrative expenses increased to approximately HK$67.5
million from HK$45.4 million in 2020 which is mainly due to
written off of other receivables, however this is partially offset by
the Group’s tightening of cost control and the restriction imposed
on travelling because of COVID-19, travelling and transportation
expenses reduced significantly. Apart from the written off of other
receivables, the major components in administrative expenses
being salaries and welfare for both staff and directors; rent and
rates, legal and professional fee and depreciation.

During the year, the Group incurred heavy impairment losses
on goodwill and trade receivables of HK$116.97million and
HK$178.03 million respectively; these impairment losses amounted
to approximately 77.7% of the loss for the year. Due to the of
the continuity of the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group had
experienced difficulties in the renewal of fishing licenses from
overseas government because fishing vessels inspection by PRC
officials, which is one of the pre-requisite for renewal,
unable to carry out due to travel restrictions being imposed. As
management was unable to estimate the time required to re-
commence the existing overseas fishing operation in the current
overseas country, the management began to seek for alternative
overseas fishing grounds, thus, the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of the Company’s subsidiaries were fully impaired.
Again, because of COVID-19, the Group had experienced delays
in settlement from its customers, the management had made
various request to urge for the settlement of the amounts due,
but because of the slow settlement from the customer, the
management has made impairment losses on the outstanding
balance as the yearend date based on the settlement pattern from
the customer.

was

Included in the total assets, there were advance payments to
suppliers amounting to HK$517.3 million (31 March 2020:
HK$626.6 million); as a trading practice, the suppliers usually
require the Group to place a deposit to secure the supply of aqua-
products. The amount of deposit were made in accordance with
the supply contracts with the supplier, however, with reduction
in trading volume, some of these deposits were applied to the
settlement of purchases to the suppliers. The Group has performed
an expected loss assessment to write down the advance payment
to suppliers to its fair value.
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Outlook

The Company’s supply chain management business has been
adversely affected by the continuity of the outbreak of COVID-19
during the Year, however, the Company will pay close attention
to its performance and future development. At the same time,
the management will continuously monitor and review the overall
operation and financial performance of the Group’s businesses
so as to cope with the ever-changing business environment. The
management will continue to proactively seek other promising
investment and business opportunities to broaden the source of
income of the Group and enhance value to the shareholders of the
Company through investment and/or acquiring business or projects
that have promising outlooks and prospects, and with the Group’s
management team having extensive experience in the marine
fishing business, the Group will also explore further opportunities
in the marine fishing business.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$1,544,594,000 (31 March 2020: approximately
HK$1,716,622,000), including bank balances and cash equivalent
of approximately HK$9,656,000 (31 March 2020: approximately
HK$2,924,000).

As at 31 March 2021, there was general banking facilities granted
to a subsidiary of the Group of RMB54,950,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB33,290,000) of which RMB54,950,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB33,290,000) was utilised. Excluding the above banking
facilities, during the Year, the Group financed its operation mainly
with its own working capital and proceeds from the issue of
placing/ subscription shares and borrowings.

As at 31 March 2021, the gearing ratio (defined as the ratio
between total bank borrowings and total assets) was approximately
4.24% (31 March 2020: 2.15%). The Group’s total bank
borrowings as at 31 March 2021 was HK$64,822,000 (31 March
2020: HK$36,989,000).

SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES

i) On 10 July 2020, the Company has completed the
subscription agreement Il with the subscriber Il (an
independent third parties), of 40,000,000 new shares,
(the”Subscription Share 11”) at HK$0.13 per Subscription
Share (the “Subscription I1"”). 40,000,000 Subscription
Shares was allotted and issued by the Company pursuant
to the subscription agreement. The gross proceeds from the
Subscription Il is HK$5.2 million and the net proceeds of
approximately HK$5.1 million from the Placing were utilized
as general working capital of the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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iii)

12

On 17 July 2020, the Company has completed the
subscription agreement | with the subscriber | (an
independent third party), of 40,000,000 new shares
(the”Subscription Share 1”) at HK$0.13 per Subscription
Share (the “Subscription 1”). 40,000,000 Subscription Shares
were allotted and issued by the Company pursuant to the
subscription agreement |. The gross proceeds from the
Subscription | is HK$5.2 million and the net proceeds of
approximately HK$5.1 million from the Placing were utilized
as general working capital of the Group.

On 20 October 2020, the Company has completed the
subscription agreement with the subscriber (an independent
third parties), of 50,000,000 new shares, (the”Subscription
Share”) at HK$0.10 per Subscription Share (the
“Subscription”). 50,000,000 Subscription Shares was allotted
and issued by the Company pursuant to the subscription
agreement. The gross proceeds from the Subscription is
HK$5.0 million and the net proceeds of approximately
HK$4.9 million from the Placing were utilized as general
working capital of the Group.

On 2 December 2020, the Company has completed
three subscription agreements with three subscribers
(all independent third parties), with an aggregate of
157,696,000 new shares, (the”Subscription Share”) at
HK$0.12 per Subscription Share (the”Subscription”).
157,696,000 Subscription Shares were allotted and issued by
the Company pursuant to the subscription agreements.

On 29 December 2020, the Company has completed
the subscription agreement with the subscriber (an
independent third parties), of 200,000,000 new shares,
(the”Subscription Share”) at HK$0.12 per Subscription
Share (the “Subscription”). 200,000,000 Subscription
Shares was allotted and issued by the Company pursuant
to the subscription agreement. The gross proceeds from the
Subscription is HK$24.0 million and the net proceeds from
the Placing of approximately HK$23.9 million were utilized as
general working capital of the Group.

iii)
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Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and related
hedges

Most of the transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar (“HKD") and Renminbi (“"RMB"). The Group adopts a
conservative treasury policy with most of the bank deposits being
kept in HKD, or in the local currencies of the operating subsidiaries
to minimise exposure to foreign exchange risks. As at 31 March
2021, the Group had no foreign exchange contracts, interests or
currency swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purposes.

Significant investment, material acquisitions and disposal of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant investments,
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the Year.

Charge on group assets

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no charge on assets (31
March 2020: pledge of certain leasehold land and building with
carrying amount of approximately HK$19.6 million) as collateral to
secure borrowings granted to the Group.

Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no contingent liability as at
31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: Nil).

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 61 (31 March 2020: 78)
employees including the Directors. Total staff costs (excluding
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$10.6
million for the Year, as compared to approximately HK$13.2 million
in 2020. Remuneration is determined by reference to market terms
and the performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. Year-end bonus based on individual performance will
be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contributions. Other benefits include contributions to statutory
mandatory provident fund scheme to its employees in Hong Kong
and basic insurance for the elderly, basic medical insurance, work
injury insurance and unemployment insurance to its employees in
the PRC.
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Future plans for material investments or capital assets and
their expected sources of funding in the coming year

Save as disclosed in the “QOutlook” above, the Group has no future
plans for material investments or capital assets in the coming year.

Contractual arrangements

One of the business segments under development by the Group
is the marine fishing business which would be operated under the
contractual arrangement. This business was acquired by the Group
in December 2016. The following graph shows the structure of the
Group conducting this business as at 31 March 2021:

(0 i e L B Iy )

BEAREFEFEEZARRAEIRAEFARE 2
EERIR

FREX AR FAEEIN AEERFWEER
BRERBEAREEZRKETE -

BRRY
AEEERFBMBEBPLERENET —EE
BRI A AN LZHRE - RAEEN T —RF
tT-AKBZER - TEBRRBE_T—_—F=
A=t RAKEETZEBNRE:

A7

The Company

|100%

(BVI)

Super Heritage Limited

|100%

SRGEEMARAR (FH)
Golden Thai Marine
Products Group Limited (HK)

| 100%
TIN TR 5 A RAF
AR Z PN AR vt (HER)
Registered owners Shenzhen Yuheng Trade
Mr. Hong Maoji (100%) Management Co., Ltd
(PRC)
i
100% 1 100%
USRS

| (under contractual arrangement)

TRINTH e T 5 A RN 7]

()

Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen)

Fishery Co., Ltd.

(PRC)
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Under this business, the operators are required to obtain the
license (i.e. Far Ocean Fishing Enterprise issued by the Agricultural
Department (B I EFRENLZE)) to conduct its business.
Jin Yu Tang is the operating subsidiary of the business holding
the License. If Shenzhen Yuheng Trade Management Co., Ltd
("Shenzhen Yuheng”) directly interested in the equity interest
in Jin Yu Tang, there will be a change in enterprise nature of
Jin Yu Tang and that the benefits and tax concessions from the
fishing operations that Jin Yu Tang is eligible to participate will be
restricted. Therefore the existing fishing operations that Jin Yu Tang
could undertake beyond the permitted scope mentioned above will
probably be affected.

Therefore in order to obtain the effective control on Jin Yu Tang
and the right to enjoy the economic benefits in the business and
assets of Jin Yu Tang, Shenzhen Yuheng has entered into a set
of control agreements (the “Control Agreements”) with Jin Yu
Tang and the existing shareholder which remains effective since
1 December 2016. The Control Agreements comprise (a) Loan
Agreement; (b) Share Charge Agreement; (c) Exclusive Purchase
Agreement; (d) Shareholder’s Power of Attorney Agreement; (e)
Cooperation Framework Agreement; (f) Technical Support Service
Agreement; and (g) Technical Research Service Agreement. Set out
below are the major terms and other relevant information of the
Control Agreements executed amongst Shenzhen Yuheng, Jin Yu
Tang and its respective shareholder and directors:

(a) Loan Agreement

Pursuant to the loan agreement executed on 1 December
2016 (the “Loan Agreement”), an interest free loan of
RMB15 million will be provided by Shenzhen Yuheng to
the existing shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, with no fixed
term of repayment. The loan is secured by a charge of the
shareholdings in Jin Yu Tang.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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(b) Share Charge Agreement

(c)

16

Pursuant to the share charge executed on 1 December 2016
(the “Share Charge Agreement”), the existing shareholder of
Jin Yu Tang pledged his entire equity interests in Jin Yu Tang
to Shenzhen Yuheng, he will convey to Shenzhen Yuheng
all his interests in the dividend and distributions for securing
the repayment obligations of the shareholders of Jin Yu Tang
under the loan agreement.

Pursuant to the PRC rules, in the event that Jin Yu Tang goes
into liquidation, Shenzhen Yuheng as the beneficial owner of
the charged share interest has the priority in recovering the
repayment of the loan.

Exclusive Purchase Agreement

For the purposes of obtaining the rights to purchase all
(or part) of the equity interest and/or asset in Jin Yu Tang,
Shenzhen Yuheng entered into an exclusive purchase
agreement on 1 December 2016 (the "Exclusive Purchase
Agreement”) with the shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, pursuant
to which, an irrevocable and exclusive right was granted
by the shareholder to Shenzhen Yuheng (or its nominee) to
purchase all (or part) of the shareholders’ equity interest in
Jin Yu Tang. The consideration will be determined based on
the minimum amount of consideration as permissible under
the then PRC laws and regulations or, in case of equity
interest, the value of the registered capital.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Purchase Agreement, unless
with a prior written consent from Shenzhen Yuheng, the
shareholder of Jin Yu Tang would not vote in favour of
any resolutions in relation to any decision on the sale,
assignment, transfer or any other method of dealing with the
equity interest of Jin Yu Tang.

(b)

(c)
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(d)

(e)

Shareholder’s Power of Attorney Agreement

Pursuant to the shareholder’'s power of attorney agreement
executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Power of Attorney
Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang shall appoint the person(s)
nominated by Shenzhen Yuheng as directors to the board
of directors of Jin Yu Tang thereby creating an effective
control on the board of directors of Jin Yu Tang. In addition,
Shenzhen Yuheng has the right to remove directors, the
general manager and legal representatives of each of Jin Yu
Tang and replace them with its nominees as it thinks fit.

The shareholder of Jin Yu Tang undertook to Shenzhen
Yuheng that as the shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, he irrevocably
assigned his voting rights to Shenzhen Yuheng (or such
other person as directed by Shenzhen Yuheng) and to vote in
accordance with the directions of Shenzhen Yuheng on any
resolution proposed at a general meeting of the shareholder
of Jin Yu Tang.

In addition, Shenzhen Yuheng is authorised to exercise the
shareholders’ rights in Jin Yu Tang including exercise of voting
rights, rights to nominate directors of Jin Yu Tang, the rights
to sell or transfer all or any of their respective shareholding in
Jin Yu Tang.

Cooperative Framework Agreement

Pursuant to the exclusive cooperative framework agreement
executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Cooperative Framework
Agreement”), Shenzhen Yuheng will set up a management
committee with Jin Yu Tang, and both parties will occupy
two positions. Shenzhen Yuheng will provide technical
research and technical support services for deepwater aquatic
products to Jin Yu Tang, in return for service fees. The
proportion of service fees will eventually be determined by
the management committee in accordance with the agreed
terms of the Cooperative Framework Agreement. Shenzhen
Yuheng may, at its sole discretion, terminate Cooperative
Framework Agreement upon giving one month's written
notice in advance to Jin Yu Tang at any time.
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(9)

Technical Support Service Agreement

Pursuant to the technical support service agreement executed
on 1 December 2016 (the “Technical Support Service
Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang will receive technical support
services from Shenzhen Yuheng, which includes: business
system and management technology, business technology,
customer service technology, services permitted by PRC laws,
etc. Jin Yu Tang shall pay technical fee and any other costs
arising from technical fee on a monthly basis during the
terms of the Agreement. The fee is 100% of the monthly
income, and the total monthly fee should not exceed 100%
of the monthly income.

Technical Research Service Agreement

Pursuant to the technical research service agreement
executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Technical Research
Service Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang will obtain technological
research and development services from Shenzhen Yuheng
to assist Jin Yu Tang in developing the application software
required for the operation of fishing business, and will pay
monthly service fee to Shenzhen Yuheng. The service fee is
based on a certain proportion of the revenue from the service
of Jin Yu Tang.

In accordance with the terms of the Control Agreements,
Shenzhen Yuheng is able to govern the financial and operating
policies of Jin Yu Tang and Shenzhen Yuheng can enjoy all of the
economic benefits of Jin Yu Tang because:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the board of directors of Jin Yu Tang is controlled by
Shenzhen Yuheng pursuant to the shareholder’s Power of
Attorney Agreement;

the general meeting of Jin Yu Tang is controlled by Shenzhen
Yuheng pursuant to the shareholders’ Power of Attorney
Agreement; and

all the benefits arising from the entire equity interests in Jin
Yu Tang is entirely conveyed to Shenzhen Yuheng pursuant
to the Share Charge Agreement, Cooperative Framework
Agreement and Loan Agreement.

The Group believes that, notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership, the Control Agreements give the Group control over Jin
Yu Tang in substance. Accordingly, Jin Yu Tang is accounted for as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021, the business of marine fishing
is not yet commenced by Jin Yu Tang and it is principally engaged
in supply chain management services business.

Risk of the contractual arrangement

There is inherited risk of the contractual arrangement. The Group
has no equity ownership interest in Jin Yu Tang and it relies on
contractual arrangements to control and operate the business
of Jin Yu Tang under the Control Agreements. However such
contractual arrangements may not be as effective in providing
control over Jin Yu Tang as compared with direct ownership
since (i) there is no assurance that the Control Agreements could
comply with future changes in the regulatory requirements in
the PRC; (ii) these contractual arrangements will not preserve
Shenzhen Yuheng's control in the occurrence of certain events
which may be outside the control of Jin Yu Tang and its respective
shareholders; and (iii) potential conflicts of interest between the
Group and Jin Yu Tang and its respective shareholders exists and
whether the shareholders and directors of Jin Yu Tang will act
completely in the interest of the Group is outside the control of
the Group. Any of the above may materially and adversely affect
the validity, effectiveness and enforceability of the control of the
Group and Shenzhen Yuheng on Jin Yu Tang and its respective
shareholders. Any inability, or limitation on Shenzhen Yuheng’s
ability to enforce the contractual arrangements with the Jin Yu
Tang and its respective shareholders or to take any legal remedies
under the PRC law could disrupt the business and have a material
adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations and
prospects of this business. Whether such conflicts of interest could
be effectively managed or otherwise be resolved in the favour of
the Group and its subsidiaries will be crucial to the effectiveness
of contractual arrangements. In the event the disagreement and
dispute cannot be resolved under friendly negotiation and proceed
to arbitration, there is no guarantee that the final decision under
arbitration would be in favour of the Group.
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In order to mitigate the risk of the contractual arrangement, the A#ZMANTHER AEBEEN_T—KF
Group has since its acquisition of this business in December 2016  + = A UBE 2T ZE S B FREUA N - LARE(R
implemented the following measures to ensure the sound and &I EEE R A BUE(E:

effective operation of the Control Agreements:

- the Board has nominated its representatives to Shenzhen  —

Yuheng and Jin Yu Tang to ensure that there is a continuous
and effective control over Jin Yu Tang’'s operation and
management. The Group has also obtained the directors’
undertaking as detailed above;

- suitable management has been assigned to Jin Yu Tang —

to report regularly to the Board for review in relation to
major issues arising from implementation of the Control
Agreements;

- suitable reporting system in line with the Group’s financial ——

reporting practice in the PRC have also been in place to
ensure that the Group would have full access and control
over the book and record of Jin Yu Tang and to obtain
periodic financial information to ensure proper financial
record are kept;

- the proper record system for shareholders’ meeting and —

directors’ meeting of Jin Yu Tang has worked effectively
and will continue to be in place, and a copy of these notice
for meeting and resolution will also be passed to Shenzhen
Yuheng and the Group before and after the meeting to keep
the Group informed on all important development of Jin Yu
Tang; and

- the Group has worked closely and will continue to work — —

closely with the PRC legal advisors and the management of
the Jin Yu Tang on the update of rules and regulations of
the PRC to monitor the continue compliance of the rules and
regulations by Jin Yu Tang as to its conduct of business and
contractual arrangement.
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In the event if the PRC government further release the restriction  {}/ B BT 5 INE A BEITE TS ESBMiE
on far ocean fishing operation to be undertaken by foreign —2FHERS| NEB BB RITFEESHBZE T2
company, the Group will as soon as possible exercise the exclusive BREWEEFTEZ BEERELER A LZEE-

right under the Control Agreements to acquire the direct equity
interest in Jin Yu Tang and unwind the contractual structure.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Rongsheng, aged 59, is an executive Director, chairman,
the chief executive officer of the Company and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. He completed a professional programme
in International Economics and Trading from Beijing Training
University of Economics and Technology* (b &3 &5 = i ift1& &
Bt ), the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1998. He also
holds a qualification as a senior economist in the PRC. Mr. Liu has
over 25 years of experience in import and export trading, logistics,
corporate strategic management, project management and finance
business.

Mr. Fan Guocheng, aged 54, is an executive Director. He
graduated from Beijing Foreign Studies University with a major
in professional accounting in July 2019 and graduated from
Guangzhou Financial Higher Special School (currently known as
Guangdong University of Finance and Economics) in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1988. He is an accountant and
holds an accounting qualification certificate issued by Shenzhen
Finance Bureau. Mr. Fan has accumulated nearly 30 years of
extensive experience in financial management and has held various
positions relating to financial management, accounting and
financial accounting in many different industries in Shenzhen.

Ms. Wei Qing, aged 37, is an executive Director. She completed a
professional programme in Law from Shenzhen University in 2010,
Ms. Wei worked in J&IITT7K# B, the Shenzhen Water Authority*,
from 2010 to 2013 and also acted as a vice chairman of Shenzhen
Hydraulic Engineering Society in 2013 and was responsible for
its day-to-day administration work. In September 2013, Ms.
Wei established three trading companies which are principally
engaged in import and export trading and retail services, such as
electronic products, wines from Europe and the United States, and
health care and cosmetics products from Japan. She has extensive
management experience.

Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary
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NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lui Chun Pong, aged 52, is a non-executive Director. He
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong
Kong, a Master of Laws degree from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a Master of Accountancy degree from Charles
Sturt University in Australia and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from the City University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Lui is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate member of the Taxation Institute of
the Hong Kong and a Certified Tax Advisor in Hong Kong. He is
also an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Lui held senior positions at a number of Hong
Kong companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lui was an executive director of Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and delisted 31 December 2019), from September
2015 to December 2016 and was redesignated to non-executive
director from January 2017 to November 2018. Mr. Lui has over
29 years of experience in financing and accounting, fund raising,
mergers and acquisitions, company flotations, and real estate
business development. Mr. Lui also serves the community through
his participation in promoting sports and youth and student’ affairs
in Hong Kong. Mr. Lui was a baseball coach and was appointed as
a team secretary and a deputy delegate leader of the Hong Kong
Women's Baseball Team during the Women’s Baseball World Cup
in 2006 and in 2014. In respect of public services rendered to
youth and students’ affairs, Mr. Lui is a leader of various leadership
mentoring programs in Hong Kong United Youth Association,
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong
Professionals and Senior Executives Association. Mr. Lui was a
director of Hong Kong United Youth Association in 2014/2015
and a member of the Budget Proposal 2017-18 Subcommittee
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Lui is currently a member of the Hong Kong Student Affairs Sub-
committee of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Cai Haiming, aged 34, is a non-executive Director. He
graduated from Guangdong University of Finance, Department
of Finance. He is currently the chairman of Shenzhen Mingren
Holdings Group Co., Ltd.* ORIITEA{CIZREEBRAF) since
2017 Mr. Cai has over six years’ experience in financial investment,
resource integration and capital operations. He was a Corporate
Manager at two China joint-stock banks in Shenzhen from 2012 to
2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John, aged 48, is an independent
non-executive Director, chairman of each of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is a member of Standing Committee of National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Shenzhen Futian District (& B A REBOA W
e FYIMEAEEZ), Shenzhen and an expert juror of the
First batch of Hong Kong Expert Jurors of Qianhai Court. Mr.
Kam holds the degree of Master of Business Administration from
PBC School of Finance of Tsinghua University in China, Master
of Business Administration from The University of Manchester in
the United Kingdom. He is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kam has
over 20 years’ experience in corporate, personal and interbank
business. Mr. Kam has been the co-CEO of DTXS Silk Road
Investment Holdings Co. Ltd. since March, 2021. He was the
Senior Partner of Shenzhen Zhujin Supply Chain Management Co.
Ltd. from November 2018 to February 2021. He was appointed
as an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited from 2 May 2017 to October
2018 and was Zone Manager — Corporate Banking Division and
General Manager of Shenzhen Branch of The Bank of East Asia
(China), Limited from July 2012 to March 2017 and Zone Manager
(Western China) — Corporate Banking Division and General
Manager of Xi’an Branch of The Bank of East Asia (China), Limited
from November 2006 to June 2012.

Mr. Lam Man Hing, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director and member of the Audit Committee. He obtained a
master’s degree in business management from Jinan University. He
is currently the chairman of Hong Kong Industrial & Commercial
Association Limited; the managing director of #TZErg 7 BIFE (5
f%) &£ B AR A A Xinhua Nanfang International (Holding) Co.,
Ltd.*; the honorary president of Chongqging Chaozhou Overseas
Friendship Association; the honorary president of Chongqing
Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce and a standing director of
Happy Hong Kong Foundation. He has extensive management
experience.

Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary (Continued)
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Mr. Li Cao, aged 34, is an independent non-executive Director
and member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He graduated from China
Youth University of Political Studies with a bachelor's degree in
international trade and is currently studying at the Graduate School
of Renmin University of China. Mr. Li has been employed in a
managerial capacity at various corporations in the PRC since 2009,
and has considerable management experience. He is currently
the office director of Shenzhen City Technology and Innovative
Enterprises Service Centre* (RIUITMRIAIREHH L), and
the chief secretary of each of the Shenzhen Ocean Society and
Shenzhen Ocean Industry Association.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Chi Ming, Francis, aged 62, has over 30 years of
experience in the field of financial and general management. Mr.
Lam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor's degree of Arts in
Economics and Social Studies from the University of Manchester.
Mr. Lam was the company secretary and/or financial controller of
several companies of which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
since October 1991 and had extensive working experience in an
international accounting firm.

* for identification purposes only
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The Directors of the Company hereby present the annual report
and the audited financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 43
to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
reporting segments and geographical areas of operations for the
Year is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in this annual report on pages
66 and 67.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) did not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and
the material factors underlying its financial performance and
financial position can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
6 to 8 and pages 9 to 20 respectively. Details of the Company’s
share option scheme are provided in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statement. An analysis of the Group’s financial risk
management objectives and policies is provided in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. An indication of likely future
development in the Company’s business is set out on page 10 of
the “Management Discussion and Analysis”. No important event
affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the Year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published result of the Group
for each of the last five financial years and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31 March 2021,
2020, 2019, 2018 and 2017.

Consolidated results

MBERBE

BE RERFERERME-

mEER

Year ended 31 March

UWTAREERIAENBRFEFESF 2B HIEE
ERAREBR T —_—F —_E-_FTF - TN
F _E-N\ERE—+FR=ZA=1+—HH

BE-A=t-HLEE

(In HK$'000) 2020 2019 2018 2017
(LB FrAEN) “Z-%F T-NE —E-)\fF Z—E—LF
Continuing operation BFESEXH
Revenue e 621,723 826,513 960,595 1,294,944 121,667
(Loss)/profit before taxation from SR ERBRHA (377,705) 35,640 47,079 74.434 (82,862)

continuing operation whl/ (B8)
Income tax expenses FEREY (2,563) (3,216) (503) (15,151) (1,466)
Discontinued operations DRILER
(Loss)/profit for the year from

discontinued operations BRIFEBERER,/ (FE) 556 - - - 17,129
(Loss)/profit for the year FERA (FE) (379,712) 32,424 46,576 59,283 (67,199)
Attributable to; ATALE:

Equity holders of the Company AREIREREA (377,799) 28,029 43,668 57,054 (67,199)

Non-controlling interests FERER (1,913) (1,270) 2,908 2,229 -

(379,712) 26,759 46,576 59,283 (67,199)
Consolidated assets and liabilities and non-controlling SEEENREBERIEERER
interests
As at 31 March
R=BA=+-H
(In HK$'000) 2019 2018 2017
(LB FrAEN) T-NE  ZE-)\F ZE—tF
Total assets BEE 1,544,594 1,716,622 1,693,051 1,299,849 326,143
Total liabilities waE (474,795) (439,420) (400,924) (360,731) (50,500)
Non-controlling interests R ER 56,791 (58,704) (59,974) (46,367) -
1,126,590 1,218,498 1,232,153 892,751 275,643
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to achieving environmental sustainability.
The Group’s commitment to protect the environment is well
reflected by the continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in our daily business operations. The Group's
business is subject to national, provincial and local environmental
laws and regulations of the PRC. During the Year, so far as the
Directors are aware, there were no material breach of applicable
environmental laws and regulations of the PRC that have a
significant adverse impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

The Group also encourages environmental protection and promote
awareness towards environmental protection to the employees.
The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and reducing. It
implements green office practices such as double-sided printing
and copying, setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled
paper and reducing energy consumption by switching off idle
lightings and electrical appliance.

The Group endeavours to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources, waste reduction
and energy saving. The Group will review its environmental
practices from time to time and will consider implementing
further eco-friendly measures and practices in the operation of
the Group’s businesses to move towards enhancing environmental
sustainability.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
such requirements could lead to the suspension or termination of
operating licences. The Group has been allocating system and staff
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations
and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators
effectively through effective communications. For the Year, the
Group has complied, to the best of the directors’ knowledge, with
all relevant rules and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Company.

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonable
remunerated and also continues to improve and regularly review
and update its policies on remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A
customer complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive,
analyse and study complaints and make recommendations on
remedies with the aim of improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a
fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability
to meet business objectives arising from the movement in market
prices. The management of the Group manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events.

Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with
every function at divisional and departmental levels. Key functions
in the Group are guided by their standard operating procedures,
limits of authority and reporting framework. The management
will identify and assess key operational exposures regularly so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.
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Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence of
losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.
Key concern of investment framework will be balancing risk and
return across different investments, and thus risk assessment
is a core aspect of the investment decision process. Proper
authorisation system has been set up and detailed analysis will
be made before approving investments. Regular updates on the
progress of the investments of the Group would be submitted to
the Board.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and
retain key personnel and talents with appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence which would meet the business
objectives of the Group. The Group will provide attractive
remuneration package to suitable candidates and personnel.

Financial Risk

The Group’s also faces financial risks including interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of these
financial risks are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details (including the principal activities) of the Company’s
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021 are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Convertible Bonds “, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the Year or subsisted at the end of the
Year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in Management Discussion and Analysis, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and investments during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Except for subscription of new shares disclosed in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Company did not
redeem any of its listed shares, nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell any such shares during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 70 to 72 of the annual report and in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the convertible bonds of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statement.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, no reserves of the Company were available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie (2020: Nil),
as computed in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. In addition, the Company’s share premium account had a
balance of approximately HK$1,465,879,000 as at 31 March 2021
(2020: approximately HK$1,378,822,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 99% (2020: 99% of the total revenue for
the Year. Revenue attributable to the largest customer accounted
for 74% (2020: 57%) of the total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for 99% (2020: 94%) of the total purchases for the
Year. Purchases from the Group’s largest supplier or accounted for
48% (2020: 71%) of the total purchases for the Year.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors or any
of their close associates nor any Shareholders which, to the best
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Rongsheng
(executive Director, Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Fan Guocheng
Ms. Wei Qing

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lui Chun Pong
Mr. Cai Haiming
Mr. Yang Yong (resigned on 23 April 2020)
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Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Man Hing
Mr. Li Cao
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) and (2) of the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), Mr. Liu Rongsheng, Mr. Fan Guocheng
and Mr. Li Cao will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM"). All the
above retiring Directors, being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election thereat.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of
its independent non-executive Directors the annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be independent as at
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND COMPANY SECRETARY’S
BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors and Company Secretary of
the Group are set out on pages 21 to 24 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive directors and the
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one to three years
commencing from the date of appointment and will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than one
month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company, which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the transactions during the Year between the Group and
connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) in which a
Director has beneficial interest are set out in the section “Related
Party Transactions” of this report and note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year, nor was there
any transaction, arrangements or contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by
a controlling shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or
any of its subsidiaries for the Year. There was also no contract of
significance between the Company or one of the subsidiaries and
the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except otherwise disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no transactions incurred during the
Year which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT
No contracts concerning the management and administration of

the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals

with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 8
and 9 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme is set out note 31 to
the consolidated financial statement.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Scheme since its adoption.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
have been in force to protect the directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the business of the
Group.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses, which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any taxation relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR'S INFORMATION

The changes in Directors’ information are set out below:

Name of Director

EEpS

Details of changes

BEFE

Mr. Yang Yong -
BELE -

RS E
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EEEHEE
EEEMBENT:

Resigned as non-executive Director on 23 April 2020
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO
(including interest or short positions which they had taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to the securities transactions by directors were as
follows:

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Long position in the Shares Bz FE
Approximate
Number percentage of
of ordinary issued share
Name of Director Capacity Shares held capital
HEBTRE
BEEnsA 287) KFEEBRREAR BAEH
Ms. Wei Qing (Note 1) Beneficial owner 79,608,000 1.62%
RS 22+ (Mfat1) EnEAA 79,608,000 1.62%
Mr. Fan Guocheng Beneficial owner 800,000 0.02%
SBEIM S A BERERA 800,000 0.02%
Mr. Cai Haiming Beneficial owner 151,404,857 3.08%
BB ESE EnEAA 151,404,857 3.08%

Notes: Bfat -

(1) Ms. Wei Qing is beneficial interested in 67,852,000 shares through
Sunny Sky Capital Management Limited.

() BBEZEIEBRREAEEERAFAEDESR
67,852,000 % 17 °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the securities transactions by
directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under paragraphs headed “Directors and Chief
Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
and “Share Option Scheme” above, at no time during the Year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or of any other body
corporate granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, their respective spouses or children under 18
years of age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of persons
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who was, directly or
indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company, or substantial shareholders
as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:
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Long position in the Shares

Name of shareholder Capacity
RREEEBEH g4

Liu Yi Beneficial owner
£ ES EnEAA

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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R z2HR
Approximate
Number percentage of
of ordinary issued share
Shares held capital
HEBTRA
BEEZBEREAE BAE D
724,292,000 14.74%
724,292,000 14.74%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, so far as is known
to any Directors, none of any persons had an interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or, who was directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings
of any other members of the Group, or any other substantial
shareholders whose interests or short positions were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of the
substantial shareholders, as at 31 March 2021, no other person
is individually and/or collectively entitled to exercise or control
the exercise of 5% or more of the voting power at the general
meetings of the Company and are able, as a practicable manner, to
direct or influence the management of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, there is a sufficient public float of the issued Shares (i.e. at
least 25% the issued Shares being held by the public) as required
under the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Year and thereafter up
to the date of this report.
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

On 30 December 2019, the Board proposed to change the English
name of the Company from “China Ocean Fishing Holdings
Limited” to “China Ocean Group Development Limited” and
adopt the Chinese name "HEIFSBE R BRAF" as the
secondary name of the Company to replace its existing secondary
name in Chinese "R EGFMEIEREBR QA" A special
resolution has been passed by the shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting of the Company on 30 January
2020. A Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name was
issued by the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda on 23 April
2020 and a Certificate of Registration of Alternation of Name of
Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by the Registrar
of Companies in Hong Kong on 12 May 2020. An announcement
was made on 26 May 2020 for the Change of Company Name.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group during
the Year (2020: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year under review and up to the date of this report,
none of the Directors or the controlling shareholders or substantial
shareholders or their respective close associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) of the Company had an interest in a business
which competed with or might compete with the business of the
Group

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on page 40 to page 54 of this annual
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company sets up an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
on 18 October 2001, with written terms of reference in compliance
with the GEM Listing Rules, for the purpose of reviewing and
providing supervision over the financial reporting process and
internal control of the Group. The Audit Committee presently
comprised the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, Mr. Lam Man Hing and Mr. Li Cao. During the Year,
the Audit Committee held four meetings to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, and to provide advice and
recommendations to the Board.

The financial statements of the Group for the Year have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which is of the opinion that
such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards,
as well as the Stock Exchange’s and legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no material event subsequent to the end of
reporting period and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, who will
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM.

Having been approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s
recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint Reanda Lau &
Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited as the auditor and to authorise
the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no change of the
independent auditors for the preceding three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Liu Rongsheng

Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the Year. The Company has applied the principles
in the CG Code and complied with the code provisions set out in
the CG Code for the Year, save and except for the following:

In accordance with the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing. The roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company are performed by Mr.
Liu Rongsheng. The Board considers that the present structure
is more suitable for the Company for it provides strong and
consistent leadership in the planning and execution of long-term
business plans and strategies of the Company. The Directors will
continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's corporate
governance structure to assess whether changes, including the
separation of the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer,
as and when necessary.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made a specific enquiry with all the Directors,
each of them confirmed that he/she had complied with such
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings regarding
securities transactions throughout the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy
formulation, business strategies planning, business development,
risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and capital
transactions, and other significant operational and financial
matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board to the management include the preparation of
annual, interim and quarterly financial statements for the Board’s
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk man agement procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules
and regulations. During the Year and up to date of this report, the
Board comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Rongsheng

(executive Director, Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Fan Guocheng
Ms. Wei Qing

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lui Chun Pong
Mr. Cai Haiming
Mr. Yang Yong (resigned on 23 April 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Man Hing
Mr. Li Cao
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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The Directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 21 to
24 of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director
has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out
his/her duties effectively and efficiently. Save as disclosed above,
there is no financial, business, family or other material relationship
among the members of the Board.

The Company appointed three independent non-executive
Directors who have appropriate and sufficient experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests
of Shareholders. Each of them has been appointed for a term of
three years commencing on the date of appointment, which will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving the
other not less than one month's notice. Every Director should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and is eligible for re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director of his/her independence. Based on such
confirmations of independence, the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Apart from the regular Board meetings, the Board meets on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is

required.

During the Year, 6 Board meetings and an AGM were held.
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Details of the attendance of the meetings of the Board members

during the Year are as follows:

Name of Directors

Expd

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Rongsheng
(executive Director, Chairman and chief executive
officer)

Mr. Fan Guocheng

Ms. Wei Qing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lui Chun Pong
Mr. Cai Haiming
Mr. Yang Yong
(resigned on 23 April 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lam Man Hing

Mr. Li Cao

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION A ND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Each newly
appointed Director would have comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction upon appointment, so as to ensure that appropriate
understanding of the Company’s business and operations and be
fully aware of the responsibilities and obligations under the GEM
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. The Directors
are continually updated on the legal and regulatory developments,
as well as business and market changes, to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities. All Directors during the reporting period
have participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills through suitable
trainings. The participation in such trainings is to ensure that their
contributions to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board values diversity as a factor in selecting candidates to
serve on the Board, and believes that the diversity which exists in
its composition provides significant benefits to the Board and the
Company.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which relates to the selection of candidates for the Board.
The Board believes that a key success factor of an effective Board
is that it comprises a range and balance of skills, experience,
knowledge and independence, with individuals that work as
a team. The Board Diversity Policy was adopted to ensure that
diversity in its broadest sense continues to remain a feature of the
Board.

The Nomination Committee has been delegated with the
responsibilities for the review of the Board Diversity Policy on an
annual basis.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual to ensure balance
of power and authority. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing. The roles of the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company are performed by Mr. Liu Rongsheng. The
Board considers that the present structure is more suitable for the
Company for it provides strong and consistent leadership in the
planning and execution of long-term business plans and strategies
of the Company.

The Directors will continue to review the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance structure to assess whether
changes, including the separation of the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer, as and when necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERBE (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

¢)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
the Directors; and

e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’'s affairs. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board committees
named above are in line with the GEM Listing Rules and are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in January 2006
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee presently comprises two members,
all being independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kam
Hou Yin, John, serving as the chairman and Mr. Li Cao.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board for its final determination on the
specific remuneration packages of all Directors, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the Year
to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meetings are as follows:

Members

RE

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (chairman) e EBELE
Mr. Li Cao TRREE
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TEERBE (&)

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the senior

management of the Company for the Year are set out in notes 8
and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision of B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual

remuneration of the senior management (other than the Directors)
for the Year by band is set out below:

Remuneration bands (in HK$)

Nil to 1,000,000

AR ()

Z %1,000,000
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AR EEREBREEBRAFE 2 HNFBH
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 23 March
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee presently comprises three
members, namely Mr. Liu Rongsheng, an executive Director, serving
as the chairman, and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Kam Hou Yin, John and Mr. Li Cao.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. The Board takes into
consideration criteria such as the expertise and experience of the
relevant candidates, the market situation and applicable laws and
regulations when considering new director appointments.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the Year to
review the structure and composition of the Board as well as
the Board Diversity Policy and made recommendations on the
appointment and re-appointment of retiring Directors. Details of
the attendance of the Nomination Committee meetings are as
follows:
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXERERE ()

Number of

meetings

attended/

Eligible to

Members attend
Bk

SEERERE

24 ZEE¥E
Mr. Liu Rongsheng (chairman) RUEERE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Li Cao TRESE 11
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John SEBLRE 1/1

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
on 18 October 2001, with written terms of reference in compliance
with the GEM Listing Rules, for the purpose of reviewing and
providing supervision over the financial reporting process and
internal control of the Group. The Audit Committee presently
comprised the three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John as the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Mr. Lam Man Hing and Mr. Li Cao. During the Year, the Audit
Committee held six meetings to review and supervise the financial
reporting process, and to provide advice and recommendations to
the Board.

The financial statements of the Group for the Year have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which is of the opinion that
such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards,
as well as the Stock Exchange’s and legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.
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TEERBE (&)

Number of

meetings

attended/

Eligible to

Members attend
Bk

cERERE

24 ZEEYE
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (chairman) CEBEE(FE) 6/6
Mr. Lam Man Hing M ERAE 5/6
Mr. Li Cao RS 6/6

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the first and
third quarterly results and interim results for the Year, the annual
results of the Group for the Year and the accounting principles and
practice adopted by the Group and recommended to the Board
for considering the re-appointment of independent auditor at the
2020 AGM.

The annual results for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee at its meeting held on 29 June 2021 before submission
to the Board for approval. The members of the Audit Committee
considered that the results were prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules and
sufficient disclosure had been made.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

It is the external auditor’s responsibility to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on the consolidated financial
statements and to report their opinion solely to the Shareholders,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act and for no other purpose. They do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
content of the auditor’s report.

During the year, the fees charged by the Company’s auditors,
Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited for the statutory audit
and non-audit assignments of the Group for the year amounted to
approximately HK$1,150,000 and Nil respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Chi Ming Francis is the company secretary of the
Company. During the year, Mr. Lam has duly complied with
relevant professional training requirements in accordance with Rule
5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group’s internal
controls and risk management for reviewing the effectiveness of
these controls annually. Internal control systems are designed to
meet the particular needs of the Group and the risk to which it is
exposed.

In consideration of the size of the Group, the Board does not
consider to establish an internal audit team at present. However,
the key control procedures established by the Group are day-to-day
supervision of the business by the executive Directors, supported
by the managers responsible for the operation and the key division
support functions of finance, information system and human
resources. The key elements of internal controls described below
have been in place throughout the Year:

- procedures for the approval of capital expenditure and
payments;

- regular financial information provided to management for
reviewing the Group’s performance;

- clearly defined management structure and lines of
responsibility.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Under the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a SGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. Within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board should proceed to convene such meeting.
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Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company or put
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. The contact
details are as follows:

The Company Secretary
China Ocean Group Development Limited

Address: Room 03, 22/F, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-3956 4882

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the Shareholders
shall submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the Company Secretary at the above
address.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon its confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to include the proposed resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

PROCEDURE FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND ENQUIRES
TO THE BOARD

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone hotline, fax number, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send their
enquiries to the Board through these means. The contact details
of the Company are provided in this report, the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report and the Company’s
website.

The Board welcomes views of Shareholders and encourages them
to attend general meetings to raise any concerns that they may
have with the Board or the management directly. Board members
and appropriate senior staff of the Group are available at the
meetings to answer any questions raised by Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group for the Year. In preparing
the financial statements, the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong have been adopted, appropriate
accounting policies have been used and applied consistently, and
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquires to the Board or the Company
may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, there were no changes in the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and the Bye-laws except the change
of Company’s name.
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. REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
FIRELERIR(FE)EREEHABRAR

To the shareholders of
China Ocean Group Development Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Ocean Group Development Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 65 to 184, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUZEEMHE (F)

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a loss
attributable to equity holders of the company of approximately
HK$377,799,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021, and as
operating cash outflows of approximately HK$84,503,000. As
stated in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, these
conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Recoverability of trade and loan receivables

o Impairment assessment of goodwill
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYBREMHE (&)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Recoverability of trade and loans receivables

Refer to notes 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had trade and loans
receivables of HK$461 million and HK$22 million
respectively. Provision is made for expected credit losses
on trade and loans receivables.

Trade receivables of the Group comprise mainly
receivables for supply chain management services
business and ocean fishing business. Loans receivables of
the Group comprise mainly receivables for other loan and
loan to non-controlling shareholder.

Management applied judgement in assessing the
expected credit losses. Receivables relating to customers
with known financial difficulties or significant doubt
on collection of receivables are assessed individually for
provision for impairment allowance. Expected credit
losses are also estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics and
collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its geographical
location and its ageing category, and applying expected
credit loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts
of the receivables. The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on historical credit losses experience
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
trade and loans receivables and the estimation and
judgement involved in determining the expected credit
losses allowance of the trade and loan receivables.

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability of
trade and loans receivables include:

o Verified the balances of trade and loans receivables
by requesting and receiving confirmations on a
sample basis;

o Tested aging of trade and loans receivable balances
at year end on a sample basis;

o Obtained a list of long outstanding receivables
and identified any debtors with financial difficulty
through discussion with management;

o Assessed the recoverability of these outstanding
receivables through our discussion with management
and latest correspondence with customers;

o Assessed the recoverability of the balances by
comparing the outstanding amounts as at year end
against subsequent settlements; and

o Obtained management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowance of receivables.
We corroborated and validated management’s
assessment based on the historical settlement
pattern, correspondence with the customers,
evidence from external sources including the
relevant public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of the relevant customers and relevant
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors used in management’s assessment.

REVEFEBERRARLT  2020-2021F 57



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUZEEMHE (F)

BRAREFTEE(E)

BREETEER

RAWETNEEERETER

P W B 0 0 MR R Y T L D
A2HEREMIE KM E21 %22
T_—F=ZA=t—H  ESEERKEINEKRE

n—
7 Bl &7 #461,000,0007T F1,%5 #22,000,000T . &
BlptE W R R KW E RN TE B E S E R R G -

e S

BERENEUERTECEBEHEREEREER TP
Mg mEEE BRENREEREIEZBEEMER
BRI RE R

EREERAGFERRACEERE YR EMNFEMHR
BoE P AL FESARENEKKIAG A RRE
B (F M @RI 3T MG - EAFT TR BEEEER - EReE
WHIRTSREBEETPIEE IR BN M REARIIRIRE
DMEEERRBRFEET DR  ARRFEERTEKYE X
FERAREEBRXNABERYRNREARE - FAHE
EBERXIRBEELEFEBHECRET  YEHABURKR
B RATEEER  fIInARTETPENEUFIRRE
NEBRERE-

T PIRE)E 1L #0248 0 R MK R R T B L B SR Y R - A %
EETREERMERERNBREEBERRER S RE
AT AN -

BB BRERFMERER A REEN R EF 21

i3 I R AU 2 WK R oK - B B R W BR SR R W &
TREAERR

EERFEAMENT VMR T BUERRAMERE RS
EREVERIR

ERTRORBREENEE BEREEENTR
PARBRIA R R ESA

BEEEEENIRESERIETS ZHMERK
- JHE T BLARB AR A PR E 1

BERFRARGEETHLL T FRRERR
BRI EE - K

RSEREEHREFIARREERRBENTG -]
FENBEEMER  BEP B MK N HRR
NEE(EEBERAEFPNUBEMANAREARRRS
RIARBRAREEER  EEASREE IR B
e B AP EABEERE -

58 China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2020-2021



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYBREMHE (&)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to notes 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The cost of the Group’s goodwill as at 31 March 2021
was amounted to HK$117 million.

Management performed an annual impairment
assessment of its goodwill. Management compared the
carrying values of the cash-generating unit ("CGU")
to which the goodwill has been allocated against a
discounted cashflow forecast to determine the amount of
impairment loss which should be recognised, if any.

The preparation of a discounted cashflow forecast
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, particularly in estimating the long term
revenue growth rate and the discount rate applied.

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill as
a key audit matter because the impairment assessments
prepared by management were complex and contained
judgemental assumptions, particularly the long term
revenue growth rate and discount rate applied, which
could be subject to management bias in their selection.

Based on management’s assessment, an impairment
provision of HK$117 million for goodwill were made as at
31 March 2021.

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

o Evaluated the Group’s identification of CGU and the
value of goodwill allocated to the CGU and assessed
the methodology applied by management in the
preparation of the discounted cashflow forecast
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

o Evaluated the discounted cashflow forecast prepared
by management by comparing specific data and
significant assumptions in the preparation of
discounted cashflow forecast. Our evaluation has
taken into account our understanding of the Group's
future business plans;

o Compared the discount rate adopted in the
discounted cashflow forecast with that of
comparable companies and external market data;
and

o Obtained from management the sensitivity analysis
of long term revenue growth rate and the discount
rate adopted in the discounted cashflow forecast
and assessed the impact of changes in these key
assumptions to the conclusions reached in the
impairment assessment and whether there were any
indicators of management bias.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
in the Group’s 2021 annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS’ AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUZEEMHE (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUZEEMHE (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tsang Cheuk Bun

Practising Certificate Number P07122

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
RETEWER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
—B-—F —TE_TF
Note HK$000 HK$’000
Bifa BET T BT T
Continuing operations BEAREER
Revenue from contracts with BEFE#HRE
customers 6 621,723 826,513
Cost of services rendered and cost of  EHIREZ AR HEEY 2
goods sold D% (580,169) (739,438)
Gross profit EF 41,554 87,075
Other revenue H iz 6 13 7
Other income HAwg A 6 24,859 14,094
Selling and distribution costs HE RO HKA (740) (392)
Administrative expenses THRX (67,532) (44,121)
Impairment loss of goodwill EE 2 REEE (116,971) =
Net impairment loss for trade FEUW R R 2 R BB 18 55
receivables (178,032) (6,069)
Net impairment loss for other receivables  E fih fEUK BR 7k 2 SR (B &5 18 ) F 58 (2,179) -
Impairment loss for property, Y% - B REREREBE
plant and equipment (1,937) -
Impairment loss for intangible assets EREEREEE (695) =
Net impairment loss for loan and FEWER KR EETHE 2
interest receivables BB 155 (24,709) =
(Loss)/gain on change in fair value on ERSAREZ
contingent consideration payable RNTHEZE(EE) W (3,429) 4,539
Other operating expenses Hib g M - (500)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR EIE (21,961) =
(Loss)/profit from continuing HESEEK(BE) 55
operations 7 (351,759) 54,633
Finance costs BhE R A (25,800) (18,993)
Share of results of associate DIGEEE AR EE (146) =
(Loss)/profit before taxation from Q& £ ERBIAT
continuing operations (E518), wF (377,705) 35,640
Income tax expenses S fiF S 10 (2,563) (3,216)
(Loss)/profit for the year from BHEEEEBER(ER) BF
continuing operations (380,268) 32,424
Discontinued operation BARIREEK
Loss for the year from discontinued BRI E TS F N EE
operation 36 (2,669) (5,665)
Gain on disposal of equity interest iR B SN E (T &
in discontinued operation before RERIHE LR
release of foreign currency translation Uz @ FKRFT1S 54
reserve, net of income tax 36 3,225 =
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

REZEKmR (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-_—®=-A=+—HIEE

2021 2020
—B-—F —TE_TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bifa BT T BT T
Profit/(loss) for the year from B IFEEERFR
discontinued operation wm A, (E18) 556 (5,665)
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(ER)BR (379,712) 26,759
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMZEWE (EE)
for the year:
Items that may be reclassified A& gEEF D B i
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Exchange differences on mERZERZER
consolidation 59,521 (41,684)
59,521 (41,684)
Total comprehensive loss for the FAZEEEERE
year (320,191) (14,925)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: BUF AL FEMR (E54E), %R -
Equity holders of the Company RAERERE A 12 (377,799) 28,029
Non-controlling interests e = (1,913) (1,270)
(379,712) 26,759
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  BA T~ AL /E{L
attributable to: 2E(ER)WEEE
Equity holders of the Company RAFIREREA (318,278) (13,655)
Non-controlling interests SRR AR M AR (1,913) (1,270)
(320,191) (14,925)
(Loss)/earnings per share SER(E8R) BF 12

From continuing and discontinued

KEFBERDRIEREXED

operation
Basic HAK HK(8.57) cents HKO0.66 cents
AL il
Diluted bl HK(8.51) cents HKO0.66 cents
A B
From continuing operations REFELEERS
Basic BN HK(8.58) cents HKO0.79 cents
&AL oIl
Diluted #E HK(8.52) cents HKO0.79 cents
&AL Bl
From discontinuing operations REBERIEREED
Basic HIK HKO0.01 cents HK(0.13) cents
&AL oIl
Diluted b1 HKO0.01 cents HK(0.13) cents
&AL il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MR ORHE

At 31 March 2021
R_FE—_—F=HA=+—H

2021 2020
—B-—F —ECERE
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
MaE BT T BEET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB REE 13 10,192 15,322
Investment property "EYE 14 - 19,604
Construction in progress EEIRE 16 440,659 405,749
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 190 762
Intangible assets B EE 15 - 724
Interest in an associate PNl o s 18 41,520 =
Loan receivables and loan interest FEUE R FE W E TR &
receivables 22 13,060 -
Goodwill [EES 19 - 116,971
505,621 559,132
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 - 278
Trade and other receivables JFEE L R R e L it L R 21 1,020,088 1,081,476
Loan receivables and loan interest B E TR K FE W E FR R B
receivables 22 9,229 72,812
Bank balances and cash RITEBRIRS 23 9,656 2,924
1,038,973 1,157,490
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables FE A BR SRR EL A RS 3R 24 162,092 163,447
Borrowings ®B’E 25 141,049 127,133
Corporate bonds NEIES 28 5,530 11,132
Lease liabilities HeEaE 17 197 560
Tax payable e TE 9,374 11,127
318,242 313,399
Net current assets MBNVE EIFAE 720,731 844,091
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREAR 1,226,352 1,403,223

HESFEEZRAERDE 2020-2021FHK 67



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

REHBMRAER (&)

At 31 March 2021
R-FE-_—F=HF=+—H

2021 2020
—B-—F —ECERE
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
MaE BT T BEET T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income R A 26 58,850 55,813
Borrowings BE 25 78,907 58,811
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 - 197
Contingent consideration payables FEfS S ARE 27 14,629 11,200
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIAEE 32 4,167 =
156,553 126,021
NET ASSETS EERE 1,069,799 1,277,202
Capital and reserves R R #E
Share capital R& 2R 29 49,137 42,260
Reserves # 963,871 1,176,238
Equity attributable to equity holders of — ZNA RIP&AEEH A FE(hHE2S
the Company 1,013,008 1,218,498
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 56,791 58,704
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,069,799 1,277,202

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

29 June 2021 and signed on its behalf by

Liu Rongsheng
BlkE
Chairman

FE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-_—F=-A=1+—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARERERE AR
Reserves
e
Non-
Share Share  Contrbuted ~ Exchange  Accumulated Total controling
Note cpital  premium surplus eserve Josses Tesenes Subtotal interests Total
(In HK$'000) (NEBTTAEN) i3 Bx  RAEE S BEH%  EXRE  ZHER BiE NG SHERER At
At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NERA-H 42,260 1,378,822 594,707 (34,918)  (748,718) 1,189,893 1,232,153 59974 1,292,127
Profit for the year FREH = = = - 28,029 28,029 28,029 (1,270) 26,759
Other comprehensive income (loss)  Hf2EKE (HiE)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently Ef& A& EHHEZRENERRA
to profit or loss Exchange differences on B z[EX 28
consolidation - - - (41,684) - (41,684)  (41,684) - (41,684)
Total comprehensive incomelloss) for the  ER2E (R 4%
year - - - (41,684) 28,029 (13,655) (13,655) (1,270) (14,925)
Transactions with equity holders HREREARTZRS = = = = = = = = =
At 31 March 2020 A-F-FF=A=1-H 42,260 1,378,822 594,707 (76,602)  (720,689) 1,176,238 1,218,498 58,704 1,277,202
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
REEREEHR (F)

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE_T-_—4F=ZA=+—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KARREREARE
Reserves
1]
Non-
Share Share Contributed  Exchange Accumulated Total controlling

Note capital  premium surplus reserve losses  reserves  Subtotal  interests Total
(In HK$'000) (NEBTTAEN) i3 Ba  RGEE S AB% EARE RAER BRE Nt FERER &t
At 1 April 2020 HZZ-FERA-A 42,260 1378822 594,707  (76,602) (720,689) 1,176,238 1,218,498 58,704 1,277,202
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (377,799) (3717,799) (377,7%9)  (1,913) (379,712)
Other comprehensive income (loss)  Hf2EKE (HiE)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently Ef& A ENHRERENBERLA
to profit or loss Exchange differenceson B2 EH ZE
consolidation - - - 59,521 - 59,521 59,521 - 59,521
Total comprehensive incomefloss) for the  FR2ENE(BR) 2%
year - - - 59,521  (377,799)  (318,278)  (318,278) (1,913)  (320,191)
Transactions with equity holders BREREAETZRE
Issue of shares upon subscription RREMRTRG 290, (i) ) 3300 35172 - - - ¥mMm 39m - 390m
Issue of shares upon conversion of RERERRTRG
debts 29(ii) 151 17,319 - - - 17,319 18,896 - 18,896
Issue of shares upon acquisition of an ~ REBHEATHHRTRA
associate 29() 2,000 33,966 - - - 33,966 35,966 - 35,966
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - 18,854 - 18854 18854 - 18,854

6,877 87,057 - 18,854 - 105,911 112,788 - 112,788

At 31 March 2021 N—E--%=A=1-H 49,137 1,465,879 594,707 1,773 (1,098,488) 963,871 1,013,008 56,791 1,069,799
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Note:

(ii)

(iii)

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

The laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") require wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC
("WFOE") to provide for certain statutory reserves, namely general
reserve, enterprise expansion fund and staff welfare and bonus fund
which are appropriated from the net profit as reported in the PRC
statutory accounts.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, which are WFOE, are required
to allocate at least 10% of their after-tax profit to the general
reserve until the reserve has reached 50% of its registered capital.
The general reserve can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital. The
enterprise expansion fund can only be used to increase capital upon
approval by the relevant authority. The staff welfare and bonus fund
can only be used for the welfare of the employees of the subsidiaries
in the PRC. Appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund and staff
welfare and bonus fund is at the discretion of the board of directors
of the subsidiaries in the PRC.

The subsidiaries in the PRC incurred after-tax losses and therefore no
transfer to the statutory reserve was made for the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020.

The convertible bonds reserve represents the equity components of
the convertible bonds issued. The convertible bonds issued are split
into their liability and equity components at initial recognition at the
fair values of each of the convertible bonds.

GEE

(ii)

(iii)

FEFFEEZERAERAT  2020-2021F 3K

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-T - —F=A=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B-—F —TE_TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bifa BT T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB A (518 ) a7
from continuing operations AR T (377,705) 35,640
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operation B 4% |48 275 7 %K,/ (B18) 556 (5,665)
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E 81 31
Amortisation of other assets H b & - 121
Loss allowance on trade receivables JFE Ui B K e 18 HE A 178,032 6,069
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BB LEREITE
equipment 3,384 4,864
Depreciation of investment property KEYETE 426 568
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 572 24
Impairment loss of intangible assets B EERERR 695 -
Impairment loss of loan and interest R E K R A EREEE
receivable - 297
Impairment loss for other receivables H A FEUE IR R 518 2,179 =
Impairment loss for loan and interest JE U S T AT ) B
receivables 24,709 -
Write off trade receivables JRE Ut PR SR E 8 18 -
Write off other receivables H A EUR 3 33,064 =
Impairment of property plant and M - BB R E RS
equipment 1,937 -
Impairment loss of goodwill B EAEEEL:] 116,971 -
Interest income F 2 A (13) (7)
Finance cost BhE KA 25,800 18,993
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HE¥E  HENEKEZ
equipment Weas - (75)
Gain on disposal of other assets HEHMEE 2 Wi - (56)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR 2 EE 21,961 =
Provision for deposit paid BB E - 500
Loss/(gain) on fair value change of RS ARE 2 A EE
contingent consideration payables EE () 3,429 (4,539)
Waiver of other payable bR E A T EIR (16,667) =
Changes in working capital EEERE
Inventories FE 278 252
Trade and other receivables JFEE LT B Sk B L At FE LS R (131,705) (96,361)
Loan receivables FEWE R 26,304 (2,196)
Trade and other payables JE AT BR 5% B EL At FE S 3K 2,442 (49,935)
Deferred income B A (950) 9,780
Exchange difference ME 5 Z 5 - 5,269
Cash used in operations KEEEFARE (84,202) (76,426)
Income tax paid S IFEE (301) (416)
Net cash used in operating activities Z&;ZEFTARSFEE (84,503) (76,842)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

REBRTRER (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
—B-—F —TE_TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE BET T BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZED
Interest received EIFE 13 7
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYME - BWENMEREZ
plant and equipment Fr1S500E - 2,697
Proceeds from disposal of other assets — Hi % H & & 7 FriS 208 - 600
Purchase of construction in progress BEEEIR (7,442) (2,462)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEREE - (755)
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BEMERE
equipment (11) (41)
Net cash outflow from disposal of TERBAREELEZEER
subsidiaries (90) -
(7,530) 46
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Interest paid =EEESE (24,197) (22,963)
Proceeds from shares issued BT AD & MBI TR FT 1S
upon new placing HIBFRE 39,013 =
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERE 2 ERTD 23(b) (600) (29)
Net proceeds from borrowings BB P RIBFE 23(b) 90,566 88,277
Redemption of corporate bonds EAEPNGIIES 23(b) (5,970) =
Net cash from financing activities METHMERSFE 98,812 65,285
Net decrease in cash and cash RERREZEYRDEH
equivalents 6,779 (11,511)
Cash and cash equivalents at BERNESRESEEY
beginning of reporting period 2,924 14,326
Effect on foreign exchange rate GNEE P SR B v 2 AR
changes, net (47) 109
Cash and cash equivalents at end of HBEHRBRESRBRESZEY
reporting period, represented by BRITHSRES
bank balances and cash 9,656 2,924
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mERBBRRKE

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE

74

== &= = HIEEE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Ocean Group Development Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda on 7 June 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Bermuda Companies
Act of 1981. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is located at
Room 03, 22/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are business of
supply chain management services and ocean fishing.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2021.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
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ARIEHR

REgFEBZERAERAG(ARAF DR
ZE—EFERXAELARBE-—NAN\—FERER
AER AR EFMAK L AEREER AR -
RRATRND R BB ERZ ARG ([
RFT))GEM_ETT « A A Bl 2 s i 9 B R AR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda * & F Z & %
BRI R BB E A B E265% FE B KN E22
BO03%E »

ARBZEBEBRIREZEBREEWMEB AR
ZEBXRBRHIEEE IR M -

BRBEAN LEGEAVBHRRANBE
(MBE D27 HEERAMBHRIER -F
——FRAZtThBERESFSHAETIE-

EHIRHA
REGAUBRRIREETE GG
([BREHMAE )BRMZABEEREER
BREERN(EBMBHREEL]) FEQ
RETRABRIARE AR AHEE 2 HEMR
EMmE MBEEMEREELNBREMAE
BBV BRERER  FEGTE(EFE
SETEA D R ZEREYBHERTN
BB X GEMRE 75 £ 4R B ([ GEM L 4%
Al 2 BRWERE



PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and contingent
consideration payables which have been measured at fair
value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of
the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new
and amended standards as set out below.

The Group has incurred a loss attributable to equity
holders of the company of approximately HK$377,799,000
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and operating cash
outflow of approximately HK$84,503,000. As at 31 March
2021, including the Group’s cash and bank balances
were approximately HK$9,656,000. As at the same date,
the Group had current borrowings of approximately
HK$141,049,000 and matured corporate bonds of
HK$4,530,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore,
the Group may not be able to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RENBBRRHME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In order to improve the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company have been implementing various
measures as follows:

(1) the Group is expected to generate positive cash flows
from its future operations;

(2) the Group continues to improve the operating efficiency
by implementing measures to tighten cost controls
over various operating expenses in order to enhance
its profitability and to improve the cash flows from its
operations in future; and

(3) The Group is actively considering to raise new capital
by carrying out fund raising activities including but not
limited to rights issue, placing of new shares and enter
into new bank loan facility.

Based on the Group's cash flow projections, taking into
account of effectiveness and feasibility of the above measures
covering a period of not less than twelve month from the end
of the reporting period prepared by the management, the
directors of the Company consider the Group would be able
to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within the forecast period.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying value of the Group's assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any future liabilities that may
arise and to re-classify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving
the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis for accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

o Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide further guidance on how to determine whether
a transaction represents a business combination. In
addition, the amendments introduce an optional
“concentration test” that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is an asset rather than business acquisition, when
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets.

The adoption of the amendments has no significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that
allows a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate whether
certain qualifying rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic (“COVID-19-
related rent concessions”) are lease modifications
and, instead, account for those rent concessions as if
they were not lease modifications.

The adoption of the amendments has no significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RENBBRRHME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-_—®=-A=+—HIEE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FEEHBE#A)
The Group has not early applied new and revised AEBYWERFERR-_ZE-_SFN
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective A— BB BEEDBMGE R K
for the financial year beginning 1 April 2020. These EMZ T REIERT BB B MEE
new and revised HKFRSs include the following which Al o AT RE AR S B AARE 2 54 FHT ] I gE
may be relevant to the Group. BRI BB B E LR BB T EIE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT3 BHH 2%
FrRMEHBRENR
HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” 1 January 2023
BBV BHREEN T RIRE R 2023F1H1H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 “Lease” — Covid-19-related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
BB BHREEN6IHEI(1BF]) - BN RSZIEHEER S RZE 202056 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” — 1 January 2023
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
ARG EAN T BWERIMI(B) - RBEERB B ENE S 2023%F1A1H
Amendments to HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” — Property, 1 January 2022
Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use
R GTE6I TBE BERZEIET)—T8E - WMELRE - REAER 202241 H1H
A RE A A UL &
Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” — 1 January 2022
Reference to the Conceptual Framework
BAMBHREEASEEEH (B —BISIELRRE 202241 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 1 January 2022
Assets” — Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BB R EE REBBELKEGEEI(ER])-BEER—BITERMNAR 202251 A1H
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020 1 January 2022
BBV IEHRERER2018E2020F AT EIEET 20221 A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 “Investments in associates and joint To be determined
ventures” — Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture
BAMBHREEN0 & B ImE ] RES S ER 28 El &R FEME 2 hEH fF7E
WIRE |(BE]) - REFHEBECENSE XML ENLEEE
Management is assessing the impact of such new EREEATMZENELNMEIERT
standards and amendments to standards and will adopt RIERIR R 2 - WS AR IR Sk fE DR HB
the relevant standards and amendments to standards in R AR R A R B R R AR ISR T RO ZE R

the subsequent periods as required.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

The Groups are in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the above
developments are relevant to the Groups’ financial
statements but the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Groups' results of operations
and financial position.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries as at 31 March each year. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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